1952

State of Utah et al v. Cooperative Security Corporation of Church of Jesus Christ of L.D.S. et al : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action was brought to condemn for highway purposes 7.89 acres of pasture land owned by defendants and used by them in the operation of a dairy farm in Wasatch County. The entire tract, prior to the taking for the highway, contained 131.79 acres (Tr. 4, Exhibit A). After the taking, two small portions of pasture land were left to the north of the new right-of-way, one consisting of 3.28 acres and the other, 1.21 acres. The case was tried to the court without a jury. The trial judge determined the value of the property taken to be \$2,564.-25, computed on the average value per acre of \$325.00 (Finding of Fact No. 10). Plaintiffs accept this finding, and no issue is raised on appeal as to the judgment for the value of the land actually taken.

In Finding of Fact No. 11 the trial court determined the severance damages, or the damage to the remainder of land *not* taken, to be \$10,919.57, and entered judgment accordingly. It is as to this portion of the judgment that plaintiffs seek a review.

The 7.89 acres taken by plaintiffs was a portion of a larger tract of pasturage, containing, before the taking, 131.79 acres (Tr. 4). This property was acquired by defendants several years ago, and used in constructing and operating a dairy ranch in connection with the welfare program of the Mormon church. It was not used as a dairy pasturage prior to defendants' purchase (Tr. 22). At the time of acquiring this tract, defendants acquired another tract, to the north and west and across U. S.

Highway No. 40. These two tracts were claimed by defendants to be one unit and they asked for damages to the latter tract with all improvements thereon, although the latter tract was not touched in any way by this condemnation. All the improvements constructed by defendants in connection with the creation and operation of the dairy farm were placed upon the tract lying to the north and west of U. S. Highway 40, and no improvements were constructed on the tract, a part of which plaintiff took by this action.

Defendants, over plaintiff's objection, presented their case on the theory that the plaintiffs, by the taking of 7.89 acres pasture land from the tract of 131.79 acres, damaged the entire dairy farm as a going business; that the entire farm, as an operating unit, had been severely damaged by the taking of less than eight acres of pasture land (Tr. 20ff). Defendants' witnesses testified, with surprising unanimity, that the dairy farm, as an operating unit, had been depreciated twenty per cent, though there was no evidence offered that a price had been offered for the unit, either before or after the taking by plaintiff.

Defendants operated the farm by pasturing cattle on the land owned or leased by them and feeding the cattle in the winter with feed contributed by their members.

It is plaintiffs' position that defendants were entitled to the judgment of \$2,564.25 for the 7.89 acres of pasture land taken. We raise no question that defend-

ants were also entitled to severance damages for the depreciation in value of the two small portions of pasture land left to the north of the land taken and thus cut off from the defendants' main pasture land. We assert that the allowance of \$10,919.57 for severance damages cannot be supported in law or on the evidence, and is on its face error. Additional facts developed at the trial will be indicated, in the course of the argument, in support of our position.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I.

THE FACTS OF THIS CASE WILL NOT SUPPORT THE DEFENDANTS' THEORY OF SEVERANCE DAMAGES OR THE TRIAL COURT'S AWARD THEREOF, FOR THE REASON THAT THE DAIRY FARM IS NOT A UNIT OPERATION, AND ADDITIONAL PASTURE LAND WAS AVAILABLE TO DEFENDANTS.

ARGUMENT

POINT I.

THE FACTS OF THIS CASE WILL NOT SUPPORT THE DEFENDANTS' THEORY OF SEVERANCE DAMAGES OR THE TRIAL COURT'S AWARD THEREOF, FOR THE REASON THAT THE DAIRY FARM IS NOT A UNIT OPERATION, AND ADDITIONAL PASTURE LAND WAS AVAILABLE TO DEFENDANTS.

The statute here in question is Section 104-34-10, Chapter 58, Laws of Utah 1951, which, so far as material here, provides:

The court, jury or referee must hear such legal evidence as may be offered by any of the parties to the proceedings, and thereupon must ascertain and assess:

* * * *

(2) If the property sought to be condemned constitutes only a part of a larger parcel, the damages which will accrue to the portion not sought to be condemned by reason of its severance from the portion sought to be condemned and the construction of the improvements in the manner proposed by the plaintiff.

There is no question in this case but what defendants are entitled to severance damages to the two small parcels of pasture land to the north of the new right-of-way by virtue of their being isolated from the remainder of the pasturage. The allowance of \$10,919.57 as severance damages is so out of proportion to the value of that land, were it deemed completely useless as a result of the condemnation, that one can only conclude this amount was awarded on the theory that the reduction in acreage of pasture land damaged the entire dairy operation, and that it was impossible to replace such land. This theory, the law and the facts will not support. The measure of damages in such a case as this is the diminution in value of the remaining tract, caused by the taking. *State et al v. Ward et al*, 112 Utah 452, 189 P. 2d 113. The defend-

ants' dairy simply was not diminished in value to that extent by the taking of approximately 6% of its pasturage.

As pointed out, defendants' witnesses were practically unanimous in their assertion that the dairy, as a going business, was depreciated through the taking by twenty per cent. They were not unanimous in their basis for arriving at this figure. Their case was probably best stated by their witness, H. Clay Cummings. He testified, over plaintiffs' objection, that he valued the property at \$100,000.00 before and \$80,000.00 after the taking (Tr. 33). He arrived at the value of the farm by taking into consideration the amount expended by defendants in improving it. This, we submit, is not the proper measure, *State v. Ward, supra*. On cross examination he testified that he arrived at the value of \$80,000.00 after the taking by depreciating, by 20%, all the improvements constructed including the house, dairy barns, corrals and even the personal property such as pitchforks etc. used on the farm (Tr. 34-44). And this, though none of the improvements were on the tract, a portion of which was taken!

The testimony of Mr. Broadbent, Professor of Agriculture at the Utah State Agricultural College (Tr. 98 ff) indicates that he arrived at the 20 percent depreciation in the value of the dairy farm by a somewhat different process. He testified that the improvements built on the dairy ranch had a capacity of approximately 100 cows, and that they should have at least 60 as a minimum for economical operation (Tr. 100). His testimony was to

the effect that the taking of the 7.89 acres by the State reduced the pasturage to the point where it would not support the minimum economical number of cows. This testimony was offered on the theory that the land taken was absolutely irreplaceable. Apart from the legal questions involved, the facts simply will not support this theory. As will be shown hereafter, other land was available to the defendants for use as pasturage. Further, pasture land in that vicinity is usable as such for at most six months of the year (Tr. 51, 52, 219). Defendants produce or raise no other feed for their cattle, but rather procure it from their membership as contributions (Tr. 52, 219). *All* feed except for pasturage is procured by defendants from contributions of members of the Stake and none of it is produced on the dairy farm (Tr. 220). Further, at the time of the trial, more than a year after the taking of the property by the plaintiffs, the defendants were running more cattle (Tr. 51) than before, and no testimony was offered showing that efficiency or production had changed by the taking. Mr. Young testified (Tr. 217) that prior to the taking defendants ran from 100 to 105 head of cattle and at the time of the trial, 110 head of cattle (Tr. 218). In fact production increased. For the year ending October 1946, defendants milked an average of 20 cows (Exh. C). For the year ending October 1947, they milked 22 cows (Exh. D) and for the year ending in October after the taking of the land by the state they milked an average of 47 cows (Exh. E).

The only theory, if any there be, upon which the award of \$10,919.57 severance damages can be main-

tained is that the total pasturage available to defendants prior to the taking by the plaintiff of the 7.89 acres is absolutely essential to the operation of the defendants' dairy farm, that this land is irreplaceable, and that the entire dairy operation has been damaged, in addition to the land taken, to that extent. The facts will not support this theory because the record shows that additional land was available. First, at the time of the taking the defendants were renting from the New Park Mining Company an area of approximately 160 acres to the north of the present properties (Tr. 229-30), and were expending time and money improving this property. In addition thereto the record shows that at the time of the taking of this property the State offered to procure from one Don Berg 15.3 acres immediately adjacent to the defendants' pasture land to the south and east, separated from the present pasture tract by only a fence (Tr. 72, 313). The record further shows that this pasturage is as good as the rest of the pasture land of the defendants and could easily be used by it in connection with its dairy operation. The defendants simply were *not* restricted in available pasture acreage by this action.

We believe the law regarding severance damages where a part only of the tract is taken is well stated in 4 Nichols, Eminent Domain, (3rd edition) p. 307-308.

In determining the extent of an owner's remainder area and its relationship to the parcel taken consideration is given to the physical conditions which exist and not to the manner in which the land is utilized by an owner. The parcel taken

and the remainder area must, prior to the taking, have constituted a single physical unit. Where two physically separated tracts of the same owner are operated as a unit by the owner and only one of such tracts is affected by a partial taking, the unity of operation is not in and of itself sufficient to merit consideration of the second tract as part of the remainder area.

This court in the case of Provo River Water Users' Association v. Carleson et al., 103 Utah 93, 133 P. 2d 277 considered a similar problem. There, the plaintiffs had condemned pastureland belonging to the defendant, the taking of which, defendant claimed, had damaged the remainder of his farm. The jury rendered a verdict granting such damages. The court reversed, stating:

All of the cases in this court, which we have been able to find, have predicated both severance damages and damages to lands not taken, on some physical injury to lands not condemned, such as lowering or raising the level of a street or highway so as to impair access, obstruction of light and view, restriction of the remaining area in size or shape so as to render it less valuable for purposes to which it was formerly adapted, or the creation of noise, smoke, or some other condition which would operate to depreciate the market value of the property remaining.

In the cited case it was further pointed out that the facts would not support the plaintiffs' theory of severance damages in any event for the reason that there was no indication in the record that additional land was not available to the defendant. In this case, there is no question but that additional land was available to the defend-

ants. Further, this additional land was offered to the defendants and they refused to buy it (Tr. 77). It is true the defendants' witness testified that they refused to purchase this additional land because the price was too high (\$4,000.00) but even if we were to grant that it was high this is indeed strange behavior on behalf of the defendants when they assert that the taking of the 7.89 acres substantially destroyed the efficiency of their entire operation. Furthermore, in the instant case there is no evidence that access to the remaining property was impaired, no evidence it cannot be used for the same purposes as previously; no evidence of smoke or noise or anything that would depreciate the market value of the remaining property.

We appreciate the rule of law that the defendant in a condemnation case is entitled to the value of the lands taken and the damages to the remainder, if any, in money and that he cannot be compelled to accept substitute land elsewhere. However, as pointed out in the case of *City of St. Louis v. St. Louis, I. M. & S. Ry. Co.*, 272 Mo. 80, 197 S.W. 107 the matter of the availability of additional land is material in the question of damages to the remainder and to a going business conducted upon the remainder. This testimony that the Berg property consisting of 15.3 acres separated from the defendants' pasture by merely a fence, completely destroys the defendants' theory that by the taking of 7.89 acres from the 131.79 acres the defendants' operation has been reduced below the efficient minimum level and thus damaged the dairy farm irreparably.

This theory is further destroyed by the testimony offered on behalf of the defendants that a year and a half after the taking of the 7.89 acres defendants were running more cattle than they were prior to the taking and that the defendants were continuously engaged in improving the additional lands so as to increase the pasture carrying capacity of the farm. Defendants' theory is further destroyed by testimony offered on their behalf that all of the feed for their cattle comes from sources separate and apart from the farm in question. They would have us believe that the dairy farm in Wasatch County is a self-contained unit operated as such self-contained unit when in fact it is not. The record shows that the defendants at the time of trial had approximately 110 head of cattle on the farm (Tr. 218) yet according to the testimony the best portions of the 131.79 acre tract would support only two cows per acre and the poorest a mere fraction of a cow per acre during the six months pasture season. Furthermore, one of the defendants' witnesses testified that the improvements consisting of the feeding and lounging facilities had a capacity of 60 cows and at the time of the trial defendants were feeding and lounging approximately 55 head (Tr. 226-227). This same witness testified that some dairies are operated commercially without any or with very little pasturage (Tr. 225-226).

CONCLUSION

Defendants, over plaintiffs' objection, were permit-

ted to try their case on the theory that the Wasatch County dairy farm was a unit operation, and that the taking of the 7.89 acres by plaintiffs destroyed the efficient operation of the unit. To support this theory, it was necessary for defendants to establish the unity of operation, and that additional pasture land was not available to replace that taken. The trial court, in awarding severance damages of \$10,919.57, adopted this theory.

We respectfully submit that the evidence will support neither premise. The dairy farm was in fact never operated as a unit geared in its capacity to the size and nature of the pasture land available, and the evidence further shows that additional pasturage in ample amounts was, at the time of the taking, available to defendants.

Defendants are unquestionably entitled to severance damages for the two small tracts lying to the east and north of the right-of-way taken. They are not entitled to the sum awarded. We ask this court to remand the case for the purpose of properly assessing such severance damages.

CLINTON D. VERNON
Attorney General

J. LAMBERT GIBSON
Deputy Attorney General

ALLEN B. SORENSEN
Assistant Attorney General