1952

# State of Utah et al v. Cooperative Security Corporation of Church of Jesus Christ of L.D.S. et al : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE DAIRY FARM IS A UNIT OPERATION AND ONE "PARCEL" IN ONE OWNERSHIP.

CONTIGUITY IS NOT AN ABSOLUTE.

Upon the facts pertaining to the use of the farm improvements in relation to the pasture land, there is



no dispute. The milking barns, sheds and other facilities were placed upon the south slope north of Highway 40 because, despite the hazards of Highway 40, it was the best place and situation, and they were built to a capacity to match the excellent pasture owned by the same entity. The inconvenience of crossing 40 was not a sufficient objection, in the eyes of the experts from the College and the practical dairy men, to deter the layout as the condemnor found it.

The easement for the right of way over the fee under Highway 40 was shown upon the map (Exhibit A) of the condemnor, but did not break the red line outlining the parcel from which the part sought was carved.

The existence of the highway does not divide the farm into separate parcels.

That contiguity is not an absolute, is abundantly established by the decisions.

There is an annotation on the question of the relation of unity of use and contiguity of properties essential to the allowance of damages in Eminent Domain proceedings found in 6 ALR (2d), commencing at page 1197. The general rules on the question are summarized in the following paragraphs, on page 1200:

“Whatever the theory of compensation for injury to the remaining land, it contemplates primarily a single piece or tract of land of which part is taken. The courts have extended the rule, however, to embrace situations in which a tract is crossed by something lineally imposed upon it—whether by nature, by man, or by legal description—which viewed ob-



jectively divides it into sections, but which, within the intent of the rule, does not destroy its unity as a single property. In certain unusual cases, they have even departed entirely from the basis of the rule, namely, the virtual contiguity of the holdings, and applied the concept of unity to properties separated from one another by the lands of other owners or by navigable waters.”

The principle applied to lands used for farming and similar enterprises which are separated by a highway are treated at page 1220:

“12. TRACTS SEPARATED BY HIGHWAY.

“The same general principle applies in the case of rural tracts separated by a highway. The effect of the highway in separating them may be countered by proof that they are being held or employed together for the general purposes of the property, whether farming, stock-raising, logging, or other productive enterprise. It is not always that this proof is necessary, for occasionally a court will recognize an actual contiguity in the tracts if the fee is in the owner. A resort to this alternative may support the owner’s claim where no present use of the land is shown. See Par. 2, *supra*. Between the two principles *it is seldom that the crossing by a public easement, of a piece of rural property which is otherwise a unit in use or value, is allowed to interfere with an award of damages with reference to the whole property when part is taken.*”

In support of the quoted statement, the following decisions are cited to the general proposition that a high-

way or street cutting the property of the condemnee is insufficient to destroy the unity of a farm, ranch, or other agricultural property which is used as a whole.

ALABAMA — Pryor v. Limestone County (1931) 222 Ala. 621, 134 So. 17 (widening of highway across ranch of 3,200 acres).

INDIANA — Cleveland, C. C. & St. L. R. Co. v. Smith (1912) 177 Ind. 524, 97 NE 164 (fee in landowner).

IOWA — Ham v. Wisconsin, I. & N. R. Co. (1883) 61 Iowa 716, 17 NW 157.

KANSAS — Kansas City, E. & S. R. Co. v. Merrill (1881) 25 Kan. 421 (large ranch, taking of strip for railroad.)

MARYLAND — Cf. Marchant v. Baltimore (1924) 146 Md. 513, 126 A 884.

MASSACHUSETTS — Tucker v. Massachusetts C. R. Co. (1875) 118 Mass. 546.

MINNESOTA — Cf. Colvill v. St. Paul & C. R. Co. (1872) 19 Minn. 283, Gil 240; St. Paul & S.C.R. Co. v. Murphy (1873) 19 Minn. 500, Gil 433.

MISSOURI — St. Louis, M. & S.E.R. Co. v. Drummond Realty & Invest Co. (1907) 205 Mo. 167, 103 SW 977, 120 Am. St. Rep. 724; Kansas City & G.R. Co. v. Haake (1932) 331 Mo. 429, 53 SW2d 891, 84 ALR 1477.

NEW YORK — New York, W.S. & B.R. Co. v. LeFevre (1882) 27 Hun. 537.

PENNSYLVANIA — Watson v. Pittsburgh & C.R. Co. (1860) 37 Pa. 469; Baker v. Pennsylvania R. Co.

(1912) 236 Pa. 479, 84 A 959.

WISCONSIN — Welch v. Milwaukee & St. P.R. Co.  
(1870) 27 Wis. 108.

*Corpus Juris Secundum* (29 C.J.S. 982), has also stated the rule and coallated the cases, and stated the law as we believe it to be, measured by the standard of justice and authority:

“Ordinarily contiguity or physical connection between the separate parcels is essential to the requisite unity. If, however, there be no such physical connection, the separate parcels may be considered as one if they are so inseparably connected in the use to which they are applied that injury or destruction of one must necessarily and permanently affect the other. Hence, although the several tracts do not actually adjoin, they may be regarded as one if the owner has a connecting right of way over the intervening lands. *So the fact that several tracts used as one are separated by a street or highway, a water-course, a railroad right of way, or a county line does not necessarily preclude them from being considered as one in determining the damages.* It has even been held that, where two or more parcels of land are used as one enterprise and constitute such dependent elements thereof that the taking of one necessarily injures the other, they may be taken as one, even though separated by an intervening fee.”

Included in the citations to this statement are some of the cases cited in the *A.L.R.* (2d) coallation. Of significance in the group is the case of *State vs. Hoblitt*, from Montana, 288 P. 181.

The Hoblitt ranch consisted of 147 acres, lying East of the railway right of way and a 10-acre tract lying West thereof, and used as a cow pasture. The land taken consisted of 2½ acres of the 10-acre tract lying adjacent to the railway right of way.

The ranch was crossed by a highway which paralleled the railway and between the two was the dwelling house. The barns and corrals were across the road from the house. Hoblitt was engaged in farming, dairying and raising cattle, horses and hogs for market, and his arrangement was very convenient, and his milk was taken up and the can returned practically at the milking place. The question for determination was as to what items of damage should be considered, and after stating the rule in practically the identical language of the *Corpus Juris* citation, with specific application to the 10-acre tract, the Court said:

“Here the 10-acre tract is isolated from the ranch proper and forms but an inconsiderable portion thereof; but, as it is used for the pasturing of dairy cows, milked upon the ranch, the additional inconvenience and danger in the use of the pasture after the highway is constructed would furnish an item of damages to be considered. *Gaddis v. Cherokee County*, 195 N. C. 107, S. E. 358; *Texas Electric Service Co. v. Perkins* (Tex. Com. App. 1930) 23 S. W. (2d) 320.”

In that case the jury awarded \$400.00 for the land taken and \$400.00 consequential damages, and the Court said: “The jury considered and made an award for all such damaged proved”, which included the damages to

the whole farm on both sides of the highway due to the severance of the right of way from the 10-acre tract.

In a Federal case,  
Boetjer v. United States  
143 F (2d) 391  
Cert. denied  
324 US 772  
89 L. ed. 618  
65 S Ct 131

It is said:

“The first question before us here, therefore, and the basic one in all severance damage cases, is what constitutes a ‘single’ tract as distinguished from ‘separate’ ones. The answer does not depend upon artificial things like boundaries between tracts as established in deeds in the owner’s chain of title . . . , nor does it depend necessarily upon whether the owner acquired his land in one transaction or even at one time . . . Neither does it wholly depend upon whether holdings are physically contiguous. Contiguous tracts may be ‘separate’ ones if used separately . . . *and tracts physically separated from one another may constitute a ‘single’ tract if put to an integrated unitary use* or even if the possibility of their being so combined in use in the reasonably near future . . . is reasonably sufficient to affect market value.”

### THE CARLSON CASE

Appellant relies upon the *Carlson case* for a reversal of the judgment in this case upon both points of his argument: (1) The damage to the property North of

Highway 40, and (2) the availability of lands in the vicinity to replace the lands taken, in place of all severance damages.

PROVO RIVER WATER USERS ASSN. v. CARLSON  
103 Utah 93 :133 P. (2d) 777

The Carlson case does not decide the question whether or not lands must be contiguous or whether lands must be physically impaired by the construction of the project, in order to establish a case for severance damages or for damages to lands not condemned but impaired by the improvement. Mr. Justice McDonough, in the majority opinion, was careful to state that it was not necessary in that case to decide that question.

*“(1) In this case, for reasons presently stated, it is not necessary to decide whether or not lands must be contiguous or whether lands must be physically impaired by the construction project, in order to establish a case of severance damages or for damages to lands not condemned but impaired by the improvement.”*

The point which ruled the Carlson case was the fact, assumed by the Court on the appeal, that the proof in the case showed that the pasture land inundated by the reservoir, which was located a mile and a half from the home properties of the owner, could have been replaced by the purchase of similar lands to those taken and actually located nearer to the base property than those already owned by Carlson.

Although this was disputed in the evidence, the appellate court assumed it to be a proven fact, and made it the basis of the decision reversing the case and grant-



ing a new trial.

The case was not re-tried, nor was a motion for rehearing made. At about the time the matter was ruled, an intensive campaign in the papers and on the radio had been carried on by the interests promoting the Echo Reservoir protesting the high verdicts of the juries in Wasatch County in those cases, and including the verdict in the Carlson case, and settlements were effected, obviating the necessity of re-trials.

The dissenting opinion by Mr. Justice Larson in the Carlson case is a very clear statement of the whole matter, and numerous cases are cited to support his statement:

*“If several tracts are used together as a farm, in determining the compensation to be paid the owner on condemnation of only part of the land, the tract constitutes a unity and the injury to the whole farm should be considered. Grand River Dam Authority v. Thompson, 10 Cir., 118 F. 2d 242. See also U.S. ex rel, T.V.A. v. Powelson, 4 Cir.. 118 F.2d 79, 87, modifying U.S. ex rel T.V.A. v. Southern St. Power Co., D.C., 33 F. Supp. 519; U.S. v. Crary, D.C., 2 F. Supp. 870; City of Stockton v. Marengo, 137 Cal. App. 760, 31 P.2d 467, 470; State v. Hoblitt, 87 Mont. 403, 288 P. 181; Dean v. County Bd. of Education, 210 Ala. 256, 97 So. 741; Duggan v. State, 214 Iowa 230, 242 N.W. 98; City of Middleboro v. Chasteen, 285 Ky. 427, 148 S.W. 2d 295; Darlington v. Pennsylvania R. Co. 278 Pa. 307, 123 A. 284; Atchiston T. & S.F.R. Co. v. Southern Pac. Co., 13 Cal. App. 2d 505, 57 P.2d 575; City of Stockton v. Ellingwood, 96 Cal.*

App. 708, 275 P. 228; 20 C.J., p. 737, note 66; 29 C.J.S., Eminent Domain, Sec. 140, note 19; Texas Empire Pipe Line v. Stewart, 331 Mo. 525, 55 S.W. 2d 283; reversing Id., Mo. App., 35 S.W. 2d 627; City of St. Louis v. St. Louis I.M. & S.R. Co., 272 Mo. 80, 197 S.W. 107.”

It may be that we stretched the rule of unity of use to the breaking point in the Carlson case; but, manifestly, the factual difference in this case from that case, and the reservation of the Court, in the majority opinion, destroys any potency of that decision as authority against the position of the respondents in this case.

And there are cases that would sustain the allowance of severance damage to tracts separated by land of other private owners, if a permissive right of way existed across the intervening land, or the two parts were connected by a highway, as was the case in *Carlson's Case*.

Westbrook v. Muscatvie U. & S.R. Co.

115 Iowa 106

88 W.W. 202

In the majority opinion in the *Carlson Case*, there is the following statement:

“All of the cases in this Court, which we have been able to find, have predicated *both severance damages and damages to lands not taken*, on some physical injury to lands not condemned \* \* \* *or some other condition which would operate to depreciate the market value of the property remaining*,”

and cites the following cases from the Supreme Court of



the State of Utah:

State v. District Court

94 U 384

78 P (2d) 502

This was an original proceeding in the Supreme Court for a writ of prohibition against the lower court in a action brought to enjoin the defendants, State Road Commission and others from constructing a viaduct over a street crossing. The case involved matter of procedure.

The opinion of the majority by Judge Hoyt and the dissenting minority opinion by Justice Wolfe together take 23 printed pages in the Pacific Report, *but not one word about what is a “parcel” or what is “contiguity”*.

Bamberger Electric R. Co. v. Public Utilities Com.

59 Utah 351

204 Pac. 314

An original proceeding for a writ of review against the Public Utilities Commission from an order to the railroad to discontinue a private crossing. Procedural matters were determined.

Morris v. Oregon S.L.R. Co.

36 Utah 14

102 P. 629

Action by an abutting owner for damages from the construction of a railroad in the street. Here is a reference to “condemnation.”

“Such an action is no different in principle from an action for damages to the remaining property where a part only is condemned. The easement the

abutting owner has in the street is a property right, and an interference with this right is, to the extent of the interference, deemed a taking of property for which, if such taking directly injures the abutting property, as aforesaid, the owner may recover damages.”

San Pedro F.A. & L.R.R. Co. v. Board of Education

32 Utah 305

90 Pac. 565

A condemnation case, for right of way across a parcel of land occupied in part by a school house.

“Severance” not involved or mentioned.

Dooly Block v. Salt Lake Rapid Transit Co.

9 Utah 31

33 Pac. 229

Abutting owners enjoined an additional track on the street.

“In such a case an abutting owner need not stand by and see his property injured without having any means of redress.”

Stockdale v. Rio Grande Western R. Co.

28 Utah 207

77 Pac. 849

Action to restrain a switch track.

Injunction sustained against track located on private property.

“Before the appellant railway company can sub-

ject the property in question, or any part thereof, to the burdens to which it would be subjected by the running of cars and engines over the switch referred to, it must proceed under the law of eminent domain, as contemplated by the foregoing provision of the Constitution, and as required by the statutes of this state.”

Contrast the worth of the cases cited in the majority opinion, with those cited by Mr. Justice Larson, in the minority opinion in the Carlson case!

In fact, we find no better exposition anywhere of the rule as applied generally throughout the several states than that stated in the minority opinion which we quote:

Provo River Water Users Association v. Carlson  
133 P (2d) at page 782

“The right of eminent domain exists only upon the condition that full payment be made to the owner of the property taken for all damages he sustains by or as a result of the taking of the property. This contemplates not only payment for the property actually taken for use of the condemnor but for damages resulting to the condemnee by the loss of the property so taken. Normally we say the condemnee is entitled to recover the value of the land actually taken, plus the damages to the land not taken. This expression too often leads to misapplication of the true rule of recovery of damages. We should think of it in terms of property, not in terms of land. The condemnee is entitled to recover the full value of the loss he sustains by the infringe-

ment of and interference with his legal rights—the right to use his physical holdings in any legitimate way or business he may choose. The old rule was inclined to be rigid and confine the damages recoverable to the particular tract of land from which the taken part was severed. It was then extended to permit consideration of damages, if any, to contiguous tracts. Later the vision of the law became clearer. Instead of seeing through a glass darkly, the courts realized that damage to property rights were not always identical with damage to land as such, and the rule of unity of use was recognized and applied. This is sometimes spoken of as unity of property. If various tracts of land not contiguous are owned by the condemnee, and are so used, and operated that the uses to which the owner is putting the tracts none of which is taken, is substantially interfered with that constitutes a damage due to the taking which is cognizable in the action. The rule is thus laid down in 29 C.J.S., Eminent Domain, Sec. 140, page 982: ‘To constitute a unity of property within the rule, there must be such a connection or relation of adaption, convenience, and actual and permanent use as to make the enjoyment of the parcel taken reasonably and substantially necessary to the enjoyment of the parcels left, in the most advantageous and profitable manner in the business for which they are used. \* \* \* The separate parcels may be considered as one if they are so inseparably connected in the use to which they are applied that injury or destruction of one must necessarily and permanently affect the other’.”

The writer has examined again every decision in every condemnation case from the Supreme Court of Utah which he can locate, and has not found a single decision which defies "parcel" or "tract", or "piece of property", or "interest in or to property", or fixes a rule limiting severance damage to lands contiguous to the land taken, except the foregoing quotation from the minority opinion of Mr. Justice Larson in the *Carlson Case*.

It is, therefore, suggested that recourse be had to the annotators and definitions and decisions from other jurisdictions. Those hereinbefore cited abundantly sustain his opinion and statement of the law and the rule, and justify the judgment for severance damages made in this case by Judge Nelson.

## POINT II

**NO ADDITIONAL PASTURE LAND WAS AVAILABLE TO DEFENDANTS.**

## POINT III

**THE CONDEEMNEE HAS THE RIGHT TO INSIST UPON BEING PAID IN CASH, BOTH FOR THE LAND TAKEN AND FOR HIS DAMAGES TO THE REMAINDER.**

The facts of the case do not warrant a finding by the appellant court, not made by the trier of the facts, that there was additional land in the vicinity that the condemnee could acquire with the price paid for the land taken from them.

It needs no argument that a year to year lease revocable at will of the lessor, is not a lawful substitute

for cash money due as the just compensation which the Constitution requires shall be paid before land is taken or damaged by the power of the State.

Mr. Berg testified under oath that his adjacent property was not for sale!

A negotiation as nebulous as the "offer" hinted at by the Attorney General in the Brief, is not a lawful substitute for the coin of the realm.

The defendant is entitled to money and may not be compelled to accept substitute land elsewhere.

The trial Court heard the evidence pertaining to the leased land and the Berg land, including matters touching its quality, location and value, as well as "availability," and heard the owner himself, Mr. Berg, swear under oath that his land *was not for sale*.

In the matter of replacement lands, the majority opinion in the *Carlson Case* is relied upon by appellant for reversal of this case.

The writer has examined again every decision in every condemnation case from the Supreme Court of the State of Utah which he can locate, and has not found a single decision requiring a condemnee to prove he cannot find lands equal in value and use in the immediate vicinity for sale at the price fixed for the land taken, before he can recover severance damages!

## POINT IV

**THE FINDINGS AND JUDGMENT OF THE TRIAL COURT ARE CONCLUSIVE UPON THE FACTS OF VALUE OF THE PROPERTY TAKEN, UNITY OF THE PAR-**



**CEL AND OF DAMAGE THERETO AND THE AMOUNT THEREOF RESULTING FROM THE SEVERENCE.**

Throughout the cases cited in this brief, reference is frequently made to the question of the relation of the Judge and the Jury in the matter of facts to be found. Here Judge Nelson was both Judge and Jury.

Every question raised by the appellant is upon a question of fact.

The unity of the parcel is a proved fact and a fact found.

May this Court “weigh” the evidence?

**POINT V**

**THERE ARE NO ERRORS OF LAW REVIEWABLE BY THE SUPREME COURT CITED AS GROUNDS FOR REVERSAL OF THE JUDGMENT OR NEW TRIAL.**

There are no errors in the reception of evidence, or other rulings in the course of the trial, cited by Appellant and relied upon for reversal of the judgment, and no motion for new trial was made.

The Attorney General would have the Court reverse this judgment upon his ipsi dixit that “the defendants’ *dairy* simply was not diminished in value to that extent (\$10,919.57) by the taking of approximately 6% of its pasturage.”

**POINT VI**

**CONCLUSION: THE JUDGMENT SHOULD BE AFFIRMED.**

The award of damages in this case is in a sum sub-

stantially less than the evidence would have justified.

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